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HEAf\1 HGS CLERK 
EPA - -REGION 10 

BEFOR E THE 
UNITED STATES ENV IRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

Jn the Matter of: 

IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF FISH & GAME, 
GRACE FISH HATCHERY 
Cariboll Coumy, Idaho 

Respondent. 
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I. STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

' 1.1. This Consent Agreement and Finul Order ("CAFO") is issued under (he authority 

vested in the Administmtor of the U.S. En vironmental Protection Agency (" EPA") by Section 

309(g)(2)(B) of [he Clean Water Act ("CWA"), 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g)(2)(B) . 

1.2. The Administrator has delegated lhe aut hority to issue the Final O rder contained 

in Pari V of this CAFO lO the Regional ,Administrator of EPA Region 10, who in lurn has 

redelcgated this authorit y to the Regional Judicial Officer in EPA Region 10. 

1.3. Pursuan t to Section 309(g)( I) and (g)(2)(B), 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g)( I) and 

(g)(2)(B), an in accordance with the "Consolidated Rules o f Practice Govern-ing the 

Admin istrati ve Assessment of Civil Penalti es," 40 c.F.R. Part 22, EPA hereby issues, and the 

Idaho Departrnent ofFish and Game ("Respondent") hereby agrees to issuance of, the Final 

Order contained in Part V of thi s CAFO. 
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II. PREL'MINARY STATEMENT 

2,1, In accordance with 4-0 C.P.R. §§ 22. J3(b) and 22A5(b), ibl'UanCe of this CAFO 

COmmC:1CC8 Ihis proceeding which will conclude· when the Final Order contained in Pan V of 

this CAFO be<:omes effective. 

2,2, Part HI of this CAFO coowins a crmcisc siateme-nt Df dte [aellnal basis for the 

alleged to nnvc violated. 

III. ALLEGATIONS 

3.1. C\VA Section 30 lea), 33 L.S.C § l.11 t(a), prohib:ts the "d\q:I1;;lrgc of any 

poH:Jwnt by any person" except 3S 311thoriz.¢d by J National Pollman! Discharge Elirnmmion 

System ("NPDE;r') permit issued pUThuant to CWA Section 402,33 U.S,C, *1342, Seclion 

502( 12) of the CWA. 33 eSc. § 1362(12). deli",,, Ihe IeI'm "discharge of a polhlTanl" 10 

include "any addilion of any poBulum to J1:lvigable w.Hen; from any pOint source," ;'01avltzable 

walers" are: defined as "waters of the United States." 33 U.S.c. § 1362(7). 

3.2. Respondent is a po!i:ical subdivision of (he Stat,; and thus: is il "pcf}.on" dh defined 

in SwioG 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5). 

Respondent owns and operates the Grace Fish Hatchery ("Fadllty") located in 

Caribou County at Latitude f\: 42" 28.346', Longitude W : ll;; 583'. The F-acility JS a fi';;h 

hatchery that primarily (a):.es rainbow trouL 

3.4. Prior to December 1, 2007> Respondent was mlthorized 10 discharge effluent from 

the Facilily pursuant to the Genernl ~PDES Permit for Aquaculture F:lCilitlcs in Idaho ("Expired 

Permit"). Tne f':;aci!ity was given XPDES Tracking .'lo.lDGI3003S. 

3.5. Since December 1, 2007, Respondelli has been authorized to discharge efflt10n! 

from lhe Facility pursuant to fhe General NPDES Permit for Aquac;.tltore Facilities in Idaho 

COt\SENT AGREEl'-.·lENT AND FiNAL ORDER -- 2 U.S. Environmenu.l Protection Agency 
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Seattle, Washington 98101 
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S!lbJcct to Wasteland Allocations u!~der Selected Total Maximum Daily Lands ("CI.&ITCD( 

Permi\,'t The Facility was given the same NPDES ing numb<:f, 1.00130035, 

The Facility, which was under Respondem's conlrol at all times relevant to this 

action, discharges cfnuent containing pollutants from Outfall OOl i:"l10 Whiskey Creek. Outfall 

00 1 is "poiN source" within meaning of Section 502(14) of the CWA, 33 L.S.C § 1362(14), 

Whiskey Creek tlows in:o the Bear River. The Bear River is.an interstate water 

which is susceptible to use in interstate and foreign commerce, and thus i:-. i1 "navigable water" as 

defined in Section 502(7) of the C\VA, 33 1I.S.C § 1362(7), and is n "wJter of lhe United 

Stares" as defined in 40 C.F.R § 122.2. Therefore, \VhisKCY Cp,'t;"k h; a "navigabk water" as 

def,ned In Section 502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7), 5nd is a "vvnter of the United 

Slates" as deflOed ,n 40 eFR § 122,2, 

Section Vl.C2 of the Expired Fermi!. es!ahllslied a monthly average ccmcenlraiioll 

effluent limitation for lotal suspended solids ("TSS") in discharges from the Facility of 5 mglL. 

Wbe"n a pennl[[~e exceeds a m0!11bly average effluent limit, the permittee is deemed to be in 

violation of that eff1uent limit euch of the days of the month in which the violations o~nlrred. In 

january 2004, Respondent violated the monthly average concentration effluent Iimjt for TSS, 

;;ojl~tituting:' i vio!atio;)s. 

3.9. Section VI.C2 of the Expired Permit established a daily maximum concentral1on 

effluenllimit for TSS in discharge;; [tom the Facility of 10 mg/L On January 21, 2004, 

Respondcl:t violareu daily maximum cOl"!{'cntrstiol1 effluent limit for TSS, consdluHng one 

violation. 

3.10. SC(tj,)O 1l.B2.c of thB Current Permit prohibits tbe discharge of "£:outing, 

suspended or submerged matter, including dead fisll, tn iimOlJnts causing nuisance 0:: 

objectionabJe condillon or that may Jmpalt designated beneficial uses in the receiving water." 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FiNAL ORDER :I U,S, EuvirnnntCtlital Pi'otcClioo Agem::y 
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On December I I. 2007, there was a fi sh'lUlI at the Fac iliLY which resulted in the discharge of 

approximately 130 pounds o f dead fish. The di scharge o f dead fi sh caused a nui sance andlor 

objeclionable conditio n in violati on of Section U.B .2.e "of the Current Permit . 

3. t 1. Section IV .A. l .a o f [he Curren t Permif requires the permi ttee to apply all drugs, 

peslicides and other chemicals in accordance with label directions. On December 11 , 2007. 

Respondent failed to apply II disinfectant in accordance wilh the labe l direclions which resui!ed 

in an accidental spi ll of the d isinfectan t into Whiskey Creek in violation of Section IV.A.I .a of 

the Current Pe rmi!. 

3.12. Under Section 309(g)( )) or the C W A. 33 U.s.c. § 13 19(g)( I) . EPA ma y assess a 

i.ldmini slrati ve pena lty when EPA finds Ihal "any person .. . has violaled any permit condition or 
<. 

limi tation ... in a permit issued" pursuant to Sect ion 402 o f the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1342. 

Consequentl y. under Section 309(g)(2)(8) or the CWA. 33 U.S.C. § )3 )9(g)(2)(8 ), Respondent 

is li able for the admin istrative assessment of civ il penalties for violations at the Facility in an 

amoUnt nor to exceed $16,000 per day for each day du ri ng which the violation conlinues, up [0 a 

maximum oF$I77,500. 

IV. CONSENT AGREE MENT 

4.1. Respondenl slipu lates that EPA has jurisdi cti on over the subjecl rnalter alleged 

herein. 

4.2. Respondent express ly waives any right (0 contest the allegat ions and to appeal the 

Fina l Order set forth in Part V, below. 

4.3. Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factua l allegat ions contained in 

Pan II! or thi s CAFO. 

4.4 . As required under CWA Sec tion 309(g)(3), 33 U .S .C . § l3)9(g)(3). EPA has 

taken inlo account the nature, c ircumstances, ex tent and gravi ly o f Ihe i.I l1eged vio lations as well 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND ANAL ORDER - 4 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
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as Respondent 's economic benefi t of noncompliance, abili ty to pay, and other relevant raclor~. 

A l'ler considering these f;JClors, EPA has determined and Respondent agrees lhal an appropriate 

penally [0 sett le thi s aCl ion is in the amount of Fourteen T housand Dollars ($ 14 ,000). 

4.5. Respondent consents to issuance of the Final Order sct forth in Part V, be low, and 

agrees to pay the tota l c iv il penalty set fOl1h in Paragraph 4.4 , above, withi n thirty (30) days of 

the effective date of the Final Order. 

4.6. Payment under thi s CA FO shaJJ be made by cashier's check or ce rtified check, 

payab le [0 the order of "Treasurer, United Slates of America" and deli vered to the following 

address: 

U.S. Environmental PrOleclion Agency 
Region 10 «, 


Fines and Pena lties 

Cinc innati Finance Cente r 

PO Box 979077 

SI. Louis, MO 63 197·9000 


ResjX>ndent sha ll note on the check the title and dockel nu mber of thi s action, 

4.7. Respondent shall serve photocopies or the check described in Paragraph 4.6, 

above, on the Regional Hearing Clerk and the EPA Region 10 Office or Compliance and 

Enforcement at the rollowing add resses: 

Regio nal Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environ mental Protection Agency 

Region 10 

1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900, ORC· ! 58 

Seaule , WA 98 101 


U,S. Environmental PrOleclion Agency 

Region to 

Orfice of Compliance and Enforceme nt 

Alln: Chri s Gebhardt 

1200 S ixth Avenue, Suile 900, OCE·1 33 

Sealt le, W A 9810 I 
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4.8. If Respondent fail s to pay the penalty assessed by thi s CAFO in fo il by the due 

date sel fo nh in Paragraph 4.5, above, the entire unpaid balance of penally and accrued interest 

shall become immediale ly due and owing. If Responden t fails to pay the penalty assessed , 

Respondent may be subject to a civ il act ion to co llecllhe assessed penalty under the CWA. 

together with interest. fees. costs , and additiona l penalties described be low. In any collection 

action, [he validity, amount and appropriateness of the penalt y shall not be subject to rev ie w. 

4.9. If Respondent fiJil s 10 pay any panion of Ihe penalty assessed by thi s CAFO in 

full by the due date set forth in Paragraph 4.5, above, Respondent sl1ull be responsible for 

payment of the amounts described below: 

4.9. 1. In!eres!. Pursuanlto Section 309(g)(9) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. 

§ 13 19(g)(9), any unpaid portion of the assessed penalty shall bear interest at a rate 

established by the Secretary of T reasury pursuant to 3 1 U.S.c. § 37 17(a)(1) from lhe 

e ffective date o f the Final Order set fo rth in Pan V, below, provided , however, that no 

interest shall be payable on any portion of the assessed penalty that is paid within thil1y 

(30) days of Ihe effective date of the Final Order. 

4.9.2. Attorneys Fees. Collection Costs, Nonpayment Penalty. Pursuant to 

Seclion 309(g)(9) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g)(9), if Responden! fails LO pay on a 

timely basis lhe amount of the penalty set forth in Paragraph 4.4, above, Respondent shall 

pay (in addit ion to any assessed penalty and interest) altorneys fees and costs for 

collec tion proceedings and a quarterly nonpayment penalty for each quarter during which 

such failure persists. Such nonpayment penally shall be in an amount equal to twe nty 

percent (20%) of the aggregate amount of Responde nt s' penalties and nonpayment 

penalties which are unpaid as of the beginning of such qUJ11er. 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER· 6 U.S. EnvironmentAl Protection Agency 
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4. 10. The penalty described in V:l ragraph 4.4, above, inc lud ing any Hdd itio nal costs 

incurred unde r Paragraph 4 .9, above, represenLS an administrative civi l penalty assessed by EPA 

and shall not be deductibl e for purposes of federal taxes. 

4 . 11. The unders igned representative of Respondent certifies that he or she is full y 

aUlhorized 10 en ler into the terms and conditions of this CAFO and (0 bi nd Respondenl to thi s 

documenl. 

4. 12. Except as described in Paragr:lph 4 .9.2, above, each pany shall bear its own costs 

in bringin g or defending Ihi s action . 

4. I3. The provisions of this CAFO shall bind each Respondent and its age nts, servan ts , 

employees, successors, and assigns. 
<. 

4.14. The above provisions are ST[J'ULATED AND AGREED upon by Respondenl 

and EPA . 

DATED: IDAHO DEPARTMEnFJ ISH & GAME: 

~W~ 
Signalure aV'l'", rj 3 ~c~~rv--
Print Name: t;41 
Title ' C",;i.-..I'I'<' \ Ch 

DATED : U. ENV IRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

(31 1;)10'1 

For Co mplainan t 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND ANAL ORDER - 7 U.S. Environmenlal Protection Agency 
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v. " FINAL ORDER 

5. 1. The terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement CIfe hereby ratified and 

incorporated by reference into thi s Final Order. Respondent is hereby ordered to comply with 

the foregoing terms of (he se llJemenl. 

5.2. This CAFO shall constitute a se ttlement by EPA of all claims for civil penalties 

pursuant to the CWA for the violations aJleged in Part nI, above. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. 

§ 22.3 1(a), nOlh ing in thi s CAFO shall affect the right of EPA or the Uni ted Slates to pursue 

appropriate injunct ive or Diller equi tab le relief or criminal sanctions for any violDlions of law. 

This CAFO does not waive, extinguish, or otherwise affect Respondent's obligations to comply 

with all <lpplicabJe provisions of the CWA, appl icab le CWA regulalions, and/or any permil s 
< . 

issued thereunder. 

5.3 . In accordance with Seclion 309(g)( I) of the CWA. 33 U.S. c. § 13 19(g)(1 ), and 

40 C.F.R. § 22.38(b), Ihe Idaho Departmenl of Environmental Quali lY has been given Ihe 

opportunity to consul! with EPA regarding the assessment of the admin istrative civil penalty 

ag<linst Respondenl. 

5.4. Pursuant 10 Secl ion 309(g)(4)(A) of Ihe CWA. 33 U.S.c. § 13 19(g)(4)(A). EPA 

has published public nmice of its inlentlO assess an adm.i ni strat ive penahy against Respondent 

i.\Ild to invite public comment in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.45. More than forly (40) days 

have elapsed since (he i ssuance of this public notice, and EPA has received no petition to sel 

<lside the Consent Agreement contained herein. 

5.5. This Final Order shall become effective lIpan filing. 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER - R u.s. Environmental Protection Agency 
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SO ORDERED Ihi, ;J3~ay of 5t'b?, , 2009. 

THOMAS H~ ~ _~~ 
Regional Judicial f.fi ~ ~~ 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 10 


<. 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER· 9 U.S. Environmental Protection Agen,-y 

DOCKET NO. CWA-2009-OI72 1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900 


Scallle, Washington 98 10L 

(206) 553-1037 




., , 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned certifies that the original of the atta.ched CONSENT AGREEMENT 
AND FINAL ORDER in In the Matter of: IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF FISH & GAME, 
GRACE FISH HATCHERY, DOCKET NO.: CWA-IO-2009-0172 was filed with the 
Regional Hearing Clerk on September 23,2009, 

On September 24, 2009 the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the 
document was delivered to: 

Courtney Weber, Esquire 
US Environmental Protection Agency 
1200 Six th Avenue, ORC- IS8 
Suite 900 
Scatlle, WA 98101 <. 

Further, the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the aforementioned 
document was placed in the United States mail certified/return receipt on September 24, 2009, to: 

Thomas S. FTCW 


Resident Hatcheries Supervisor 

Idaho Dept. of Fish & Game 

600 S. Walnut Street 

Boise, ID 83707 


Dallas Burkhalter 

Deputy Attorney General 

Idaho Department of Fish and Game 

600 S. Walnut Street 

P.O. Box 2S 

Boise, Idaho 83707 


DATED thi s 24" day of September 2009. 

ca~~ 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
EP A Region 10 


